

CABINET

MEETING : Wednesday, 25th March 2015

PRESENT : Cllrs. James (Chair), Dallimore, Norman, Organ and Porter

Others in Attendance

Councillor Kate Haigh, Chair of the Task and Finish Group Councillor Declan Wilson, Member of the Task and Finish Group Martin Shields, Corporate Director of Services and Neighbourhoods Ross Cook, Corporate Director Jon Topping, Head of Finance Meyrick Brentnall, Environmental Planning Manager Sue Mullins, Head of Legal and Policy Development Atika Tarajiya, Democratic Services Officer

90. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations.

91. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on the 25 February 2015 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair subject to amendment of paragraph 87:

Councillor James summarised the current position and explained that the focus would be on generating savings and increasing profits reducing the cost to the *taxpayer* whilst maintaining all the current services. He commented that the decision had been taken not to implement the box office frontage, as this would not be cost effective and in line with public priorities.

92. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)

There were no public questions.

93. PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)

There were no petitions and deputations.

94. RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK AND FINISH GROUP ON THE MANAGEMENT OF PARCELS OF UNADOPTED GREEN LAND

Cabinet considered the report of the Chair of the Task and Finish Group updating Members on the recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Task and Finish Group on the management of parcels of unadopted green land.

Councillor Haigh, Chair of the Task and Finish Group, explained that the purpose of the report was to identify a range of solutions that would help to improve these areas. She commented that the Task and Finish Group had identified that preventative action in the planning stages of new developments and promoting residents to take ownership were potential solutions. She noted that these areas could be used for community or recreational activities by local residents.

Councillor Wilson, Member of the Task and Finish Group, advised that issues regarding safety had emerged as a result of the findings. He was pleased to note that Amey were committed to intervene in instances where threats to personal safety had been identified.

The Environmental Planning Manager, in response to a query from the Councillor Organ, reported that the existing software, identified land ownership and responsibility within the City but noted that it would be beneficial if any new data, gathered as a result of work carried out on the Stock Transfer was transferred over.

Cabinet Members acknowledged the importance of identifying ownership of these parcels of land and noted that the inclusion of a legal framework during planning applications could enforce developers to discharge their corporate responsibility. They recognised that the findings had not produced an exhaustive list and that further work would be required. They endorsed the approach, noting that it would benefit local communities and commented that existing community groups could be approached to take part in the community clean-ups which would reduce the cost to the Council.

RESOLVED:

That the recommendations of the Task and Finish Group be considered, and matters that can be actioned without the need of a further report be implemented at the earliest opportunity and matters requiring more detailed consideration be the subject of a further report to Cabinet as necessary.

95. TREASURY MANAGEMENT QUARTER 3 REPORT 2014/15

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources updating Members on Treasury management activities in Quarter 3 (1 October 2014 to 31 December 2014).

Councillor Norman highlighted the key areas of the report and commented that the report had been to Audit and Governance Committee on the 16 March 2015, where the contents of the report had been noted

Cabinet Members endorsed the proposed approach and were pleased to note that the Council were currently in an under borrowing position in the current challenging economic environment.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and note that no changes are required to the prudential indicators.

96. GLOUCESTER CITY MARKETS STRATEGY

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Culture which presented Members with the results of the 12 week consultation on the 5 year Draft Gloucester Strategy with a view for formal adoption.

Councillor James outlined how the strategy and detailed action plan sought to attract tourists and continue to develop the City's heritage. He commented that due to the popularity of the Hempsted Meadows market, discussions to increase the size of the site were on-going and the service was currently out for tender. He reported that following a meeting with the Asset Managers at Eastgate Shopping Centre, the first floor option for the Eastgate indoor market was no longer considered appropriate and would not be pursued further.

Councillor James advised that the report had been presented to Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 23 March 2015, they had noted the contents of the report and had requested the inclusion of an additional recommendation concerning proposals for better signposting for the current Eastgate Indoor Market.

Cabinet Members acknowledged the role of the Markets in the heritage and regeneration of the City. They stressed the need to take the views of the traders and service users into account and commented that new options could be explored as result of new regeneration schemes within the City. They recognized the need for a strategy that would be financially viable and that would not require subsiding to remain operational. They placed on record their thanks to all the Officers involved.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the content of the consultation feedback be noted.
- 2. That the Gloucester City Markets Strategy and Action Plan are approved and adopted.
- 3. That the Council's preferred option is a new ground floor indoor market in either Kings Quarter or Blackfriars developments, the Eastgate Shopping Centre or another prominent city centre location and that further work is undertaken on these options.

97. PROPOSED IMPLEMENTATION OF CHARGES FOR THE DISCRETIONARY SERVICES PROVIDED FOR STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Culture seeking approval of a Street Naming and Numbering Policy that defines how the Council will deliver this statutory function and recover associated costs, and the introduction of a charging regime from May/June 2015 for this function.

Councillor James reported that the new charges were on a not for profit basis and were in line with other local authorities.

Cabinet Members endorsed the proposals, stating that it was appropriate to charge for the service to reduce the costs to the tax payer. They were confident that the minimal charges would not dissuade any future developers from the City.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the implementation of charging for the discretionary element of the street naming and numbering process on a 'not for profit' basis in accordance with the new street naming and numbering policy be approved.
- 2. It be noted that the fees charged are on a cost recovery basis only in line with other local authorities.

98. SOCIAL PRESCRIBING UPDATE

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods updating Members on the pilot of Social Prescribing in Gloucester and South Tewkesbury Locality and seeking approval for the City Council to continue to host the social prescribing hub, subject to the satisfactory evaluation of the pilot scheme.

Councillor Dallimore reported that the project had been re-branded "Your Wellbeing" to provide greater clarity for service users. She explained that the project adopted an asset based regeneration model and aimed to assist users through non-medical intervention. She commented that due to the success and the high number of referrals of the original pilot scheme, the County Commissioning Group (CCG) had agreed to extend the project.

Cabinet Members were pleased to note the popularity of the scheme and recognised the respite that it provided for healthcare services in the City. They advised that the scheme would need to be monitored closely during its early phases and noted that statistical information was not yet available but would be useful in evaluating the scheme's overall success.

RESOLVED:

1. That the contents of the report be noted.

2. That the City Council continues to host the social prescribing hub in partnership with the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) funded scheme, subject to satisfactory evaluation of the pilot scheme which ends in June 2015.

99. AN UPDATE ON THE EFFECTS OF STAFF VOLUNTEERING POLICY AND PROMOTION OF VOLUNTEERING ACROSS THE CITY

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods updating Members on the effects of the staff volunteering policy to date in the year 2014/15.

Councillor Dallimore reported that the scheme had been in existence for several years and had been actively promoted since July 2014 which had resulted in increased participation. She explained that the uniqueness of the scheme lay in providing a face to face service and utilising the asset based community model to promote volunteers' own interests for the benefit of the wider community.

Cabinet Members praised the strategy noting that it led to up-skilling of the work force and paid employment opportunities. They noted that the Rugby World Cup 2015 and other events planned in the City would give rise to many varied volunteering opportunities.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted.

100. REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) SIX MONTHLY REPORT ON USE OF RIPA POWERS

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources updating Members on the Council's use of its powers under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA).

Cabinet Members noted that the Council had not been required to exercise these powers and acknowledged the importance of adhering to the recently reviewed RIPA policy and procedure when required.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted.

101. HERITAGE STATEMENT 2014/15

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Culture informing Members of the work carried out by the Historic Environment Team in the City over the past financial year.

Cabinet Members noted the depth of work carried out in the City over the past year and it's contribution in promoting the City's pride and heritage culture. They commented that this would continue to develop Gloucester as a tourist destination thereby promoting the City's economy.

RESOLVED:

That the content of the report be noted.

102. RUGBY WORLD CUP UPDATE REPORT

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Culture outlining the key issues for the delivery of the Rugby World Cup 2015 (RWC15)

Councillor James highlighted the key progress to date and acknowledged that further work was still needed. He commented that £48 million return was expected from the event for the benefit of the City and this would be achieved through local businesses working with the Council and taking personal responsibility and action. He reported that a permanent commemoration of the RWC15 was due to be launched in Kings Square alongside further improvements to the infrastructure at this location.

In response to Councillor Dallimore's query, Councillor James explained that community groups and leaders could go online on the Festival of Rugby Site to register their interest for any event that they wished to hold around the RWC15 and this would contribute to the legacy of the event.

Cabinet Porter requested that reference to the planning and environmental projects being undertaken concerning the RWC15 be included in any future updates.

RESOLVED:

That the progress made so far regarding preparations for Gloucester's Host City arrangements for the Rugby World Cup 2015 be noted.

103. PROPOSALS FOR DELIVERY OF THE COUNCIL'S COMMUNICATIONS AND MARKETING SERVICE

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources seeking approval to proposals for the future delivery of the Communications and Marketing Service.

Cabinet Members endorsed the approach noting that this was the appropriate option and would generate further savings.

RESOLVED:

1. That the City Council's Communications and Marketing Service be delivered by Gloucestershire County Council, as outlined in Option 3 of the report, (with the exception of the City Filming Office function) with effect from 1 April 2015.

- 2. Authority be delegated to the Head of Legal and Policy Development to negotiate and approve the terms of an Agreement with Gloucestershire County Council to provide the services approved at paragraph (1) above.
- 3. That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to make any consequent changes to the Council's Constitution to reflect the arrangements.

104. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER

Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet for Performance and Resources updating Members on the Strategic Risk Register.

Councillor Norman summarised the main areas of the report and commented that the report had been to Audit and Governance Committee on the 16 March 2015, where the contents of the report had been noted.

Cabinet Members endorsed the policy recognising the need for a robust risk management strategy.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted and endorsed.

Time of commencement: 18:00 hours Time of conclusion: 19:27 hours

Chair